
 
 

P.O. Box 3039 Grand Junction, CO 81502 
E-Mail: info@mesaFML.org Web: www.mesaFML.org 

Page 1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  
 
Date and Time: 2:00 PM on Wednesday, November 15, 2023 
 
Location: Home Loan Building, 205 N. 4th Street, Grand Junction, CO 81501, in the Community Room 
on the Basement level 
 
In attendance:  
Quint Shear 
Dusti Reimer 
Bobbie Daniel 
Craig Springer 
Matt Rosenberg 
Chris McAnany 
 
 
Meeting Minutes 

I. Call to order at 2:02 pm. 

II. General Public Comment.  

a. None. 

III. Approval of the October Meeting Minutes. 

a. C. Springer made a motion to approve the October meeting minutes. B. Daniel 
second. Voted. Approved. 

IV. Staff Report. 

a. D. Reimer said for social media she posted the meeting agenda was posted, she 

shared The Business Times news story on our grant awards, she posted a 

Veteran’s Day thank you and posted the notice that the 2024 budget was 

available for public comment. D. Reimer said we received no public comment on 

the budget. 

b. D. Reimer said the media we received from the grant awards press release was 

from The Business Times. 

c. D. Reimer said there were no grants requesting payment at this time. 



Page 2 

d. D. Reimer said the invoices for October are Dusti Reimer Invoice #189 for 
services and supplies for October for $3,810.69 and EideBailly Invoice 
#EI01590905 for services and supplies from June through October for $3,175.52. 

e. D. Reimer said the upcoming events are the 2024 budget must be approved by 
December 31st.  January 17th will be the first meeting of the new year, and our 
approved budget will need to be submitted to the state by January 31st, 2024. 

V. Review of Investment Account. 

a. M. Rosenberg said that he doesn’t have much of an update, but that the 
portfolio is up 9.7% year to date. The duration of bonds is no 4-6 years. We 
switched that back in August and October and we went long duration. Now 
rates have come down 40 basis points. We are right on our target of 60% equity 
allocation. We had our client luncheon on October 26th, and I gave my 
accounting forecast for the year. I gave my year end target for the S & P, and it 
was 4500. In the last three weeks markets have just shot up. We’ll see. We’ve 
had a nice bounce back, but there will still be volatility. Ebbing and flowing 
through the cycles. The next big risk event will probably be around the elections. 
The outcome of the election doesn’t have an affect on the stock market. It is 
very important, but there just isn’t a big correlation with past presidents and 
impacts on the stock market.  We will just stay disciplined and we’re beating the 
benchmarks.  

b. The Board had no questions for Matt. 

VI. Approval and Signing of the 2023 Fall Grant Award Contracts. 

a. D. Reimer said she was still waiting for signatures from CMU and School District 
51. 

b. C. Springer made a motion to approve the grant contracts for Town of De 
Beque, Colorado Mesa University, Mesa Valley School District 51, and 
Downtown Development Authority of Grand Junction. B. Daniel second. Voted. 
Approved. 

VII. Review of Financials. 

a. D. Reimer said as of October 31st, the fund balance showed $2,581,483.92, 
grants payable bumped up to $1,050,000 because we entered the grant awards 
from this past cycle. In the profits and loss, you’ll see the $350,000 entered in for 
the grants awarded, we had legal fees of $2,087.50 and contract services for 
$3,750 and dues and members for $362.66 and supplies for $197.29 for grant 
binders and supplies. For the permanent fund at the end of October we showed 
-$43,143.02, unrealized gain/loss of -$3,219.24, interest earned of $2.46, 
dividend income of $2,973.85 and investment fees was -$4,774.57. 

b. D. Reimer said our outstanding grants are for City of Fruita, Colorado Mesa 
University, D51 Palisade High School, Grand Junction Downtown Development 



Page 3 

Authority, Mesa County Public Library, Plateau Valley Fire Protection District, 
Town of Collbran and the Town of De Beque. 

c. Q. Shear had a question-when is the Town of Collbran due for their grant? 

d. D. Reimer said she spoke with them last month. They just need to submit their 
paperwork for our portion of the grant. They’ll have the entire project finished in 
the spring, but our portion of the project has been completed. D. Reimer also 
spoke with the library, and they should have their paperwork turned in soon as 
well. We should have these both paid out by the end of the year. 

e. C. Springer made a motion to approve the financials. B. Daniel second. Voted. 
Approved. 

VIII. 2024 Draft Budget Review and Approval. 

a. Q. Shear said we went through the draft last meeting. Does anyone have any 
questions about the budget or any changes we would like to make? We have a 
$250,000 contribution to the permanent fund and $700,000 for grants. We will 
have a million-dollar budget. 

b. D. Reimer said just for context for everyone, the $700,000 would be for one 
grant cycle in the fall. With this budget, would the board like to stay with the 
meeting schedule that we have had-that would be quarterly meetings until the 
fall when we hold the grant cycle. 

c. The board all agreed with the calendar. 

d. B. Daniel made a motion to approve the budget as presented. C. Springer 
second. Voted. Approved. 

e. Q. Shear said the schedule works. 

f. D. Reimer said she would send out all new calendar appointments and check 
with Linda to book the meeting room. The next meeting will be January 17th, 
2024. 

g. C. Springer said we had a question during out last award meeting. We have set 
aside funding for grants and we’ve had left over funds from grants because 
things ended up being cheaper than they thought they would be. So over the 
years we’ve grown the core balance. In a situation where we were in the last 
meeting where were we hunting around for dollars, we could take some of that 
money out of our operating account, right? Would we need to amend our 
budget if we did that? 

h. C. McAnany said oh yes. You can’t spend in excess of appropriations. If you 
budgetd $700,000 for grants and you want to spend more than that. You have 
to find a place to amend your budget, which local governments do that all the 
time. They do an amending resolution that explains where the funding is 
coming from and amends the budget. The purpose of the budget is setting the 



Page 4 

rule for how much you’re going to spend. There are unforeseen things that 
happen in the course of a year. 

i. C. Springer said so if we announce that we are having a $350,000 fall grant cycle 
and we end up spending $450,000 because we like the applications, or for 
whatever reason, we wanted to do more, we could have done that at the last 
meeting. We just would have had to amend the budget. 

j. C. McAnany said so we appropriated money, but we had reserves from what 
was left over the years before. We can do that. We just do a budget amendment 
resolution. There is not a problem with that at all. That’s all I would need to do is 
prepare that and have you authorize the change. That’s basically what we’re 
doing here-we’re estimating what we’re going to spend this year. 

k. Q. Shear asked if we need to document the excess. 

l. D. Reimer said it was up there right now, the excess fund balance is there right 
now. We have almost $300,000 left over. 

m. C. Springer said we just weren’t clear if we could do that or not. 

n. B. Daniel asked if that $298,000 estimated ending fund balance was included in 
the investment portfolio, or if this is just sitting in the bank. 

o. C. Springer said it is just sitting in the bank in a non-interest-bearing account. 

p. C. McAnany said that brings up another thing. Bank accounts are paying 
substantially higher interest for demand accounts. We need to be looking at 
that. 

q. C. Springer said when the district started we did an RFP to every bank in town, 
except Home Loan, and the only one that responded was Alpine Bank. They said 
we will take the money and it has to be in a non interest bearing account. The 
reason for that was this, Colorado has the Colorado Public Deposit Protection 
Act. We are a PDPA entity. Alpine or whatever bank that has those funds, has to 
post collateral in excess of FDIC limits and that costs money. We’ll put it into a 
transaction account, where you can’t earn anything, but that’s it. We’ve talked 
in the past years about reaching out to change that. 

r. D. Reimer said we did reach out with an RFP for banking services. The reason we 
didn’t, is because we gave all the money back to Mesa County and we had 
nothing in our account. Timberline was the only one that responded to switch 
our account to an interest-bearing account. 

s. C. McAnany said that’s right. I had some other public entity clients and I saw 
their statement just recently with Bank of the San Juans and they were earning 
about 4.5% on their money. Not earning interest on $300,000 might be 
worthwhile to explore that. 

t. C. Springer said the average balance is higher than that.  



Page 5 

u. D. Reimer said we have about two million in the account right now. 

v. B. Daniel said I know I’m new to the board, but can we give that money to Matt 
to invest? 

w. C. McAnany said we can invest up to 50% of our money in any given year. The 
board has this discussion every year about how much to put in there and how 
much to grant out. We’ve built up a hefty fund. If you wanted to review every 
year what you’ve put in and what you’ve gotten out, we could amend the 
budget.  

x. M. Rosenberg said we could create another fund for you, it just wouldn’t be an 
investment fund. We could put it in a money market. 

y. C. Springer said it’s the funds, not the account. It’s who owns the money that 
makes it a PDPA. 

z. C. McAnany said that should be something we look at and put this on the 
agenda for January. 

aa. D. Reimer said we can just review the original RFP for banking services. I called 
all the banks and we only got one response bank. 

bb. C. McAnany said that Bank of the San Juans had a great rate for a PDPA. We just 
want to make sure they can legally take public money and it’s protected. 

cc. Q. Shear said we definitely need to take a look at that in January. In the mean 
time, do we want to make any changes to the fund balance? Or do we want to 
wait and change our budget in the year next year? 

dd. C. Springer said it’s pretty conservative and I’m ok with where we are right now. 

ee. B. Daniel said she agrees. 

IX. Unscheduled Business. 

a. Q. Shear asked if there is anything else to add? 

b. C. McAnany said I just wanted to add that I sent you all an email yesterday.  In 
the many years representing the district, this is the first time I’ve had a potential 
conflict come up. I represent the Town of De Beque, also. They are grant 
recipients. Lawyers cannot represent clients who are potentially averse to one 
another under our ethical rules. I don’t believe the district and town are averse 
to one another, but it could happen if they misspend money in the grant, or 
something like that. I’ve given you that information in the disclosure how those 
ethical rules work. If you wanted to sue them, I would have to withdrawn and 
you and the town would need to seek different representation. I wanted to 
disclose that to you and also, if it looks ok to you, to ask for your signature on 
the disclosure form. I understand the town has already signed that form. It’s 
more an ethical housekeeping form. I never want to have my advice to you 
impaired or restrained by my obligation to another client. 



Page 6 

c. Q. Shear asked if anyone has any problems with this? 

d. C. Springer made a motion to approve the legal disclosure. B. Daniel second. 
Voted. Approved. 

e. Q. Shear said he had some information items to help get the word out. 
Sometimes I think there is a disconnect with our entities and where this money 
comes from. One of our cities here in the County, three weeks ago, voted to 
write a letter in support of closing down mineral leases in Mesa County with the 
BLM plan. In the meantime, they have an application with us for mineral lease 
money and they currently have an application with DOLA for mineral lease 
funds. How do we address this? Me personally, I won’t represent the mineral 
lease board, but I will be turning up to their next city council meeting and laying 
out both sides of the story. They brough in an individual from an environmental 
group. They listened to his story and didn’t have anyone else present the other 
side. When someone did try to counter the presentation, they were shut down. 
The city was Palisade, and this isn’t their first time having this disconnect and 
it’s becoming more and more common. What do we do in the future? 

f. B. Daniel asked if there was anything in the application that there is a disclosure 
this is where the money comes from? 

g. D. Reimer said there are two questions that say these funds come from minerals 
and how are these monies going to make an impact, because once they’re 
drilled, they’re gone. Perhaps we could introduce a new question that says have 
you ever opposed oil and gas? That might be an honest question. Has your 
organization support mineral leasing?  

h. C. McAnany said I think this is a fair question to ask when they do their grant 
presentations, especially if you know they have been hostile to the concept of 
minerals development. At the very least it is hypocritical to ask to be taking 
money that at the same time you oppose the development. 

i. C. Springer said that’s a good idea, but the problem with that is that a lot of 
times the people presenting are just soldiers. They are not part of that town 
council or board of commissioners or whatever. So, if they get asked if they took 
an adverse position to oil and gas, they don’t know if someone else did that.  

j. Q. Shear said I was told during this meeting that the town staff was 
embarrassed. 

k. C. McAnany said sometimes that does happen. 

l. Q. Shear said maybe it’s something we should look at in the future and maybe 
educate. 

m. C. Springer said that we should absolutely look at that. 

n. B. Daniel said maybe we should have a conflict-of-interest policy? 



Page 7 

o. C. McAnany said maybe it should be writing a letter to the board and say we 
regularly receive applications from your organization, if you don’t want us to 
consider those application sin the future, please tell us. If you are hostile or 
opposed to mineral lease development in the county, just tell us and we will put 
your applications at the bottom of the stack, or not consider them at all. We 
want to be diplomatic, but you hate to make it a dispute over this. Sometimes it 
is just one person on the council inviting everyone to get all riled up. 

p. D. Reimer said maybe it would help if I went and did a presentation to their 
board. David and I went around and did presentations to all the special district 
boards years ago to get buy in for the permanent fund. It would be easy to set 
that same thing up. 

q. C. McAnany said that would be a more positive image and diplomatic. 

r. D. Reimer said exactly, and I can pull up and tell them exactly how much money 
each community has gotten from us, because I keep a running tab. I can tell 
them how many grants they’ve gotten, where they went and how much they’ve 
gotten. 

s. C. McAnany asked how much CMU has gotten? 

t. D. Reimer said it’s probably about equal to what Clifton has gotten. They got 
the geothermal, grant for the COVID testing, money for the library and the new 
lineman facility. But, when you look at Clifton, that isn’t even a town, and Clifton 
Sanitation has gotten over $1 million. 

u. Q. Shear said there is nothing on the state website that says how much money 
DOLA gets from mineral leasing. If you go on the internet and ask where does 
DOLA get it’s funding, it doesn’t tell you where the funding comes from. But it 
tells you where it gets spent. 

v. C. Springer asked if we have had any applicants that have taken adverse 
positions on oil and gas? 

w. D. Reimer said that right after Quint joined the board, the Town of Palisade and 
sent that letter to Cameo during the grant process. That was when their new 
town manager had just taken over, objecting to the leasing. She said the Daily 
Sentinel had taken what she said out of context and sent us a letter that said the 
same thing that was in the paper. 

x. Q. Shear said the City of Grand Junction has taken positions, but not in recent 
years. 

y. C. Springer said it would be nice if we could be reminded of that before we 
score. I mean it. 

z. D. Reimer asked do you want me to personally let you know, or have them 
specify on the application? 

aa. C. Springer said I would like to know. 



Page 8 

bb. Q. Shear said are we being too heavy handed? Well, our money comes from 
these mineral leases. 

cc. B. Daniel said that’s fair. 

dd. Q. Shear said I bring this up because I think I am going to show up representing 
myself and COGA and do you want me to represent us? 

ee. C. Springer said absolutely.  

ff. B. Daniel said that’s fine with me. 

gg. Q. Shear if there is anything else to add, we can accept a motion to adjourn the 
meeting. 

hh. B. Daniel made a motion to adjourn the meeting. C. Springer second. Voted. 
Approved. 

X. Meeting Adjourned at 2:46 pm. 


